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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Daniels Farm House (BBH-443), situated on 0.18 acres of land, 
is located on the south bank of the Rio Grande approximately three- 
quarters of a mile west of present Rio Grande Village in Big Bend 
National Park, Texas. Constructed in the traditional Southwest arch­ 
itectural style, the farm house stands relatively unaltered from its 
original appearance* Man-made irrigation ditches and open fields, 
once under cultivation, provide a setting in which the integrity and 
historic appearance of the farm remains intact* In effect, Daniels 
Farm House stands as one of the best historical representations of 
irrigated agricultural production in the Big Bend region*

Daniels Farm House is a simple rectangular two-room adobe struc­ 
ture. Oriented along an east-west axis, the building is approximately 
44 feet in length and 15 feet in width* Of the two rooms, the western 
most is the larger measuring 23*-2", while the smaller room measures 
15'-9"* The central wall which divides the two rooms is a twelve-inch 
thick adobe wall with a centrally located opening. Both the east and 
west elevations also have centrally located doors, so that each room has 
a door with the exception of the north elevation.

The adobe walls are built on a stone rubble foundation measuring 
approximately 18" to 24" wide. The south elevation has two doors, one 
at each end and a single window located just west of the central inter­ 
ior wall. The north elevation is broken by three window openings, two 
of which open into the western room* The average size of all windows 
is 3'-6" X 4'9". All window frames and door jambs are constructed of 
rough-cut, dimensional lumber measuring 2" X 12". The lintels extend 
through the entire thickness of the wall and are exposed on the inter­ 
ior. None of the window sashes remain and only one of four doors is 
in existence. The latter is constructed of five equally-sized panels 
of rough-cut dimensional lumber held together by heavier stiles and rail]

The construction of the exterior walls is abobe brick, which ap­ 
pears rather rough in texture. The parapet along the south is broken 
by six existing canales that extend beyond the surface of the wall ap­ 
proximately 24". Vigas, which support the roof, are also visible on 
this elevation, extending to about 10".

The interior finishes of Daniels Farm House are traditionally 
simple. The floor consists of irregularly shaped flagstones, uniform­ 
ly dark grey in color and randomly laid on a compacted earth floor. 
The floor is intact and in generally good condition. All interior walls 
are finished with an uneven coat of lime and gypsum plaster that is off 
white in color. While 70% of the plaster is still visible, it roust be 
noted that this layer of plaster is not the original. Rather, it is 
the result of a National Park Service rehabilitation project conducted 
in the spring of 1972. At present, the interior walls have been badly
scarred by graffitti.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Daniels Farm House is historically significant under category "A" 

of the National Register Criteria because of its long-term association 
with the social, cultural, and economic development of the Big Bend. In 
the first place, it is one of a few remaining physical structures through­ 
out the entirety of Big Bend National Park that adequately represents the 
farming activities of early West Texas pioneers. In a region tradition­ 
ally dominated by stock raisers, flood plain and irrigated farming emerged 
as a viable economic alternative for both Anglo and Hispanic residents* 
Secondly, since 1918 the growing dependency of these lower Rio Grande com­ 
munities upon farming centered around Daniels Farm House. After the es­ 
tablishment of Big Bend National Park in 1944, nearly all evidence of this 
activity—with the exception of this structure—disappeared. In effect, 
Daniels Farm House is the last remaining physical representation of a 
social and economic lifestyle once common along the Rio Grande. While no 
longer evident in the Big Bend region today, irrigated and flood-plain 
farming played a significantly historic role in the early settlement of 
the region.

In 1918 Jesus Estrada, the original deed holder of Block G-19,sec­ 
tion 6 (Daniels Farm House), sold his land to a Swedish immigrant named 
John 0. Wedin. That same year, Wedin, an experienced wheat farmer from 
Kansas, leveled the land and installed an 8-inch centrifugal pump irriga­ 
tion system. Although the Hispanic residents of the area had practiced 
subsistence, flood plain farming for decades before Wedin 1 s arrival, it 
was he who introduced one of the earliest commercial, irrigated farms into 
this portion of the Rio Grande valley. The remains of a flagstone canal 
still visible near the north elevation of the farm house are all that re­ 
main of the original irrigation network.

In addition, in 1918 Wedin built the structure known today as Daniels 
Farm House (BBH-443). While it appears that he did not use the building 
as his residence, he did use it to house farming equipment. Wedin 1 s resi­ 
dence was located about one mile farther east of the present Daniels Farm 
House site. For the next eight years, Wedin raised wheat, alfalfa, hay 
and other crops that he marketed among Anglo and Hispanic residents living 
in the near-by mining communities of Boquillas and San Vicente, Texas. In 
1926 Wedin sold his farm to Joe H. Graham of Del Rio, Texas.
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The most striking feature of the interior is the ceiling, which 
is actually the underside of the roof construction. A series of un­ 
evenly spaced aspen vigas, measuring 9-11" in diameter, support the 
weight of the roof. These supports rest on a dimensional lumber bear­ 
ing plate that is an integral part of the wall construction. Running 
perpendicular to the vigas are river cane and reed latillas woven to­ 
gether into a series of mats that give a corrugated look to the ceiling. 
Above the latillas is a covering of reeds and grass thatching capped 
with adobe mud. Notably, this roof is also not the original, but also 
part of the 1972 rehabilitation project. Today, the roof shows signs of 
serious deterioration. Several of the vigas are fractured and are pre­ 
sently being held by vertical supports. Portions of the latilla ribbing 
have also deteriorated beyond reuse.

The grounds around the building are not landscaped. They do, how­ 
ever, convey a strong sense of irrigated farming activity in which the 
rectangular outlines of the fields are still clearly visible. The remains 
of a small, flagstone irrigation canal—perhaps part of the original sys­ 
tem built in 1918—runs parallel to the farm house near the north eleva­ 
tion. In addition, there are several large cottonwood trees and a variety 
of grasses and carrizo cane outcrops growing along the river bank. On the 
north elevation there is evidence of a patio or ramada, which no longer 
exists. Also, there is a clearly outlined rectangular rock foundation 
adjacent to the main structure measuring 41' in length and 21'-6" in width 
Inasmuch as there are no door openings within this outline, it was pre­ 
sumably utilized for outdoor purposes only.

While there is evidence of the existence of a smaller rectangular 
one-room adobe outbuilding located approximately 100 yards east of the 
main building, it has deteriorated beyond recognition and no longer re­ 
tains sufficient integrity required for inclusion in this nomination.
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Joe Graham, a prominent West Texas cattleman and owner of the famous 
Lou Buttrill Ranch Complex located in the Rosillos Mountains north of Big 
Bend National Park, expanded the commercial importance of the farm. 
Graham continued to raise a variety of grains, alfalfa, and other "feed 

which he used primarily as winter range for his cattle, Graham
cattle in Kansas City and other Midwestern cities. In addition 

Graham owned feed lots in the Midwest where he fattened his cattle before 
shipment to the packing houses. By linking his farming operation to his 
West Texas cattle enterprise, Joe Graham introduced a fully integrated 
system of ranching into the Big Bend. Thus during the tenure of Graham's 
ownership the farm assumed regional as well as local economic importance.

i
Upon their arrival 4JP the Big Bend in 1927, Graham and his two sons 

placed more acreage under cultivation, modernized and improved upon Wedins 
original irrigation system, and built two or three smaller adobe out­ 
buildings for storage purposes. The Grahams continued to utilize the main 
structure (Daniels Farm House) for storage and maintenance of equipment.

It was not until 1937, when Joe Graham sold the upper portion of his 
farm to John R. Daniels, that the building (BBH-443) was utilized as an 
actual residence. John and Mary Coe Daniels of Presidio, Texas, enlarged 
the original one- room structure to two rooms in order to accommodate a 
small mercantile store from which they serviced the needs of local resi­ 
dents living on both sides of the Rio Grande. Known affectionately among 
the Hispanic population as "Tia MarisC^T) Mrs. Daniels sold the grains, mel­ 
ons, and vegetables grown on their irrigated property to consumers on both 
sides of the international border.

Shortly after his arrival, John Daniels converted approximately one- 
half of the 200-acre farm to cotton cultivation. In doing so, he not only 
introduced the concept of raising cash crops in this section of the Rio 
Grande valley, but also he provided a means of steady employment for local 
Hispanic neighbors. By introducing cotton into the region, the Daniels 
operation — albeit comparatively small-scale — kept pace with economic 
trends in the late 1930s that witnessed a gradual shift away from cattle 
ranching in West Texas toward agri-business. While cotton farming in 
Brewster County declined after W. W. II, it currently retains economic 
importance in other counties of West Texas. While John and Mary Daniels 
only occupied their property until the establishment of Big Bend National 
Park in 1944, they stimulated and diversified a local economy upon which 
Rio Grande residents became increasingly dependent.
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For more than three decades before the establishment of Big Bend 
National Park, Daniels Farm House, and the rich agricultural farmlands 
that enclosed it, served the economic and social needs of a bi-cultural 
community. Just as the raining and ranching pioneers of the early fron­ 
tier period blazed the way for the eventual settlement of this region, 
the farmer brought stability and a promise of long-term occupation through 
the cultivation and irrigation of the land. At present, there is little 
historical evidence that remains of the farming frontier in the Big Bend. 
Daniels Farm House, therefore, is a significant reminder of an important 
episode in the region's diverse historic past. Generally speaking, the 
overall size of the farm has been reduced and altered through park devel­ 
opment projects. Nevertheless, the remarkably well-preserved integrity 
of Daniels Farm House and the now-abandoned fields that immediately sur­ 
round it, remain to capture the essence of these early pioneer activities 
in West Texas.
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irrigation feeder; and bearing 150 degrees true azimuth, 9.7 feet from 
the southeast corner of the secondary feeder ditch culvert. A large 
tamarisk tree grows due north of this point. The northeast corner bears 
90 degrees true azimuth, a distance of 75.0 feet from the northwest cor­ 
ner. This point is approximately 18 feet south of the present centerline 
of the main feeder ditch. The southeast corner of the boundary bears 
180 degrees true azimuth and a distance of 120 feet from the northeast 
corner. The southwest corner runs southward from the northwest corner, 
bearing 180 degrees true azimuth at a distance of 90 feet. From the 
southeast corner, a line bearing 293 degrees true azimuth, a distance of 
79.3 feet. The southwest corner of the Daniels adobe structure bears 36 
degrees true azimuth, a distance of 16.1 feet from the southwest boundary 
corner.

Since the establishment of Big Bend National Park in 1944, this area 
of the park has undergone substantial development. Thus the original 
size of the Daniels Farm has been reduced to 0.18 acres which has remain­ 
ed relatively unaltered. The above boundary, therefore, includes only 
the main sturcture (BBH-443) and that portion of land that has been the 
least altered.


